Tilliman, Tameka

From: Dolan, John

Sent; Monday, May 01, 2017 9:47 AM

To: LoPresti, Heather

Subject: RE: PA-17-02: Data Call for Certain Waivers and Authorizations

Right there were no waivers of Executive Orders or authorizations given pursuant to 502 or 503 to CFTC's PAS and
Schedule C filers.

From: LoPresti, Heather

Sent: Monday, May 01, 2017 9:01 AM
To: Doian, John

Subject: FW: PA-17-02: Data Cali for Certain Walvers and Authorizations

| don’t think v @ hava znything respon‘sNe to this data cail... Do you?

VoL

Heather

Heather Joy LoPresti

Counsel, Deputy Ethics Counselor
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Phone: (202) 418-5976

The contents of this eiectronic transmission are priviteged and contain information which may be confidential, or
protected by the attorney-client and/or the attorney work product privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any
disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of this information by any means is unauthorized and prohibited. if you have
received this communication in error, please notify me immediately and delete the original message and attached
materials. :

From: News and Info for Ethics Officiais [maiito:oge-ethicsinfo@LISTSERV.GSA.GOV] On Behalf Of Ethics Mailinglist
Sent: Friday, Aprll 28, 2017 6:54 PM

To: OGE-ETHICSINFO@LISTSERV.GSA.GDV

Subject: PA-17-02: Data Call for Certain Waivars and Authorizations

v5¢ . fssues a Program Adviéory Calling for Data on Certain Waivers and Authorizations

On April 28, 2017, the U.S, Office of Government Ethics (OGE) issued a Program Advisory directing all
agencies, including the White House, to provide documents and information regarding waivers and
authorizations issued to certain appointees in the White House and other agencies from May 1, 2016 through
April 30, 2017, under the following authorities: Executive Order 13770, Executive Order 13490, 18 US.C. §
208(b)(1), S C.F.R. § 2635.502(d), and 5 C.F.R. § 2635.503(c). The deadline to submit the required information
is Thursday, June I, 2017, except as otherwise indicated in the Program Advisory.

This Program Advisory was posted to the OGE website at
https://www.oge.gov/web/oge.nsf/Program%2DManagement%20Advisories
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OGE Confidential Notice: This email, including all attachments, may constitute a Federal record or other
Government property that is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. This
email also may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise protected from disclosure under
applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the
transrnission to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, copying or

use of this email or its contents is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the ,,,
sender by responding to the email and then immediately delete the email. .
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Tilliman, Tameka

L e
From: News and Info for Ethics Officials <oge-ethicsinfo@LISTSERV.GSA.GOV> on behalf of
Ethics Mailinglist <Ethics_mailinglist@OGE.GOV >
Sent: Thuwisoay, May 18, 2017 4:31 PM
To: OGE-ETHICSINFO@LISTSERV.GSA.GOV
Sauject: IMPDRTANT Reminder to submit responses to PA-17-02: Data Call for Certain Waivers

and Authorizations

This is a reminder that the deadline for submitting your agency’s response, including negative responses, to PA-
17-02 is June 1% except as specified in the advisory. Documents are to be submitted in Portable Document
Format (PDF) through the Designated Agency Ethics Official (DAEO) or the DAEQ's designee for each agency
to the agency's assigned OGE Desk Officer.

OGE Confidential Notice: This message contains Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) that requires
safeguarding or dissemination control under applicable law, regulation, or Government-wide policy. This email,
including all attachments, may constitute a Federal record or other Government property that is intended only
for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the
employee or agent responsible for delivering the transmission to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that any disseminatior, distribution, copying or use of this email or its contents is strictly prohibited. If you have
presived thos email in error, please notify the sender by responding to the email and then immediately deletc the
email.
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From: Davis, Daniel J

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 4:57 PM

To: LoPresti, Heather; Gomez, Bianca; Dolan, John

Subject: FW: Phone Call to Discuss PA 17-02 (May 18th @ 3:30) (Correction to Phone #) 888-989-6479

FYI. | am not sure what this is about, but could one of you join the call?

From: Nicole Stein [mailto:nstein@oge.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 4:13 PM

To: Nicole Stein

Subject: FW: Phone Call to Discuss PA 17-02 (May 18th @ 3:30) (Correction to Phone #) 888-989-6479

From: Nicole Stein

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 4:.07 PM .
To: Nicole Stein t
Subject: Phone Call to Discuss PA 17-02 (May 18th @ 3:30)

Please join us on Thursday, May 18" at 3:30 EST for a brief phone call to discuss Program Advisory 17-02,

For those of you who have already submitted a response to the data call, thank you!
Call-in Details are provided below:

88B8-988-6479
Participant passcode: 6769095

OGE Confidential Notice: This message contains Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) that requires

safeguarding or dissemination control under applicable law, regulation, or Government-wide policy. This email. -
including all attachments, may constitute a Federal record or other Government property that is intended only =

for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If you are not the intended reciplent or the

employee or agent responsible for delivering the transmission to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified

that any dissemination, distribution, copying or use of this email or its contents is strictly prohibited. If you have

received this email in error, please notify the sender by responding to the email and then immediately delete the

email.

4 of 17



Heather Joy LoPresti

Counsel, Deputy Ethics Counselor
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Phone: (202} 418-5976

The contents of this electronic transmission are privileged and contain information which may be confidential, or
protected by the attorney-client and/or the attorney work product privilege. if you are not the intended recipient, any .
disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of this information by any means is unauthorized and prohibited. if you have
received this communication in error, please notify me immediately and delete the original message and atta.:hed '
materials. TR

R U,

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

FYl. 1am not sure what this is about, but could one of you join the call?

From: Nicole Stein [mailto: ostein@oge.qov]

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 4:13 PM

To: Nicole Stein

Subject: FW: phone Call to Discuss PA 17-02 (May 18th @ 3:30) (Correction to Phone #) 888-989-6479

From: Nicole Stein

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 4:07 PM

To: Nicole Stein

Subject: Phone Call to Discuss PA 17-02 (May 18th @ 3:30)

Please join us an Thursday, May 18" at 3:30 EST for a brief phone call to discuss Program Advisory 4 /-02.

For those of yau who have aiready submitted a respanse to the data call, thank you!
Call-in Details are provided below:

888-989-6479
Participant passcode; 6769085

OGE Confidential Notice: This message contains Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) that requires
safeguarding ar dissemination control under applicable law, regulation, or Government-wide policy. This email,
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
email, “ '
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llliman. Tameka

- -]
From: Nicole Stein <nstein@oge.gov>
Sent: Monday, May 22, 2017 10:07 AM
To: LoPresti, Heather
Cc: Davis, Daiiel | Dolan, John; Gomez, Bianca

Subjoct: RE: CFTC - Negative Response to the Data Call in PA-17-02

Thank you.

From: LoPresti, Heather [mailto:HLoPresti@CFTC.gov]
Sent; Monday, May 22,2017 10:02 AM

To: Nicole Stein <nstein@oge .gov> _
Cc: Davis, Daniel J <DDavis@CFTC.gov>; Dolan, John <jdolan@CFTC gov>; Gomez, Bianca <BGomez@CFTC.gov>
Subject: CFTC - Negative Response to the Data Call in PA-17-02

Good Morning Nicole,

The CFTC is submitting a negative response to the data call for Certain Waivers and Autharizations as specified in
PA-17-02. The CFTC has not issued any of the following waivers or authorizations to covered employees during
the May 1, 2016 — April 30, 2017 timeframe:

Waivers issued or approved under Executive Order 13770.
Waivers issued or approved under Executive Order 13490,
Waivers issued ur approvéd under 18 U.S.C. 208(b}(1).
Authorizations issued or approved under 5 CFR 2635.502(d).
Waivers issued or approved under 5 CFR 2635.503(c}.

Ve w N

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact either me, John Dolan (202} 418-5220, Bianca
Gomez (202) 418-5627, or Dan Davis (202) 418-5649.

Thanks
Heather

Heather Joy LoPresti

Counsel, Deputy Ethics Counselor
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Phone: (202) 418-5976

AR

(G Confidential Notice: This message contains Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) that requires

safeguarding or dissemination control under applicable law, regulation, or Government-wide policy. This email,

including all attachments, may constitute a Federal record or other Government property that is intended only

for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the

ernployee or agent responsible for delivering the transmission to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
1
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Tilliman, Tameka

e

From: Davis, Daniel J

Sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2017 8:16 AM

To: Dolan, John; Gomez, Bianca; LoPresti, Heather

Subject: FW: Letter from OGE's Director, Walter M. Shaub, Jr.
Attachments: OGE Letter to OMB Director Mulvaney 22 May 2017.pdf
FY1,

Froiti: Nicole Stein [mailto:nstein@oge.gov]

Bent: Munday, May 22, 2017 6:42 PM

To: Micole Stein

Subject: Letter from OGE's Director, Walter M. Shaub, Jr.

Enclosed please find a letter from DGE’s Director, Walter M. Shaub, Jr. The attachments to this letter can be accessed
online at the following address: https://goo.gl/OTFAib.

OGE Confidential Notice: This message contains Controlled Unclassified Information {CUI) that requires

safeguarding or dissemination control under applicable law, regulation, or Government-wide policy. This email,

including all attachments, may constitute a Federal record or other Government property that is intended only
for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the

employee or agent responsible for delivering tiie transmission to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that any dissemination, distribution, copying ot use of this email or its contents is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this email in error, nlzase 1ify the sender by responding to the email and then immediately delete the

emaii. '
A
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UNITED STATES OFFICE OF
GOVERNMENT ETHICS

. . B Y e L o
- \jz‘ s - - —

A A

May 22,2017

The Honorable John M. Mulvaney
Director

Office of Management and Budget
Executive Office of the President
725 17th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20503

Dear Director Mulvaney:

I am in receipt of your May 16, 2017, letter' requesting that the U.S. Office of
Government Ethics (OGE}) suspend its inquiry into the practices of agency ethics programs and,
separately, the activities of individual appointees.? Specifically, you ask OGE to stay a directive
issued in an April 28, 2017, Program Advisory requiring executive branch officials to produce
information and records peitaining to ethics waivers and authorizations.’

Despite the highly unusual nature and distribution of your letter,’ I have provided for
your convenience the following discussion of OGE’s plenary authority to collect the information
and records sought, as well as evidence of the longstanding history of compliance with such
collections, which obviate any need to request an opinion from the Department of Justice’s
Office of Legal Counsel (OLC). The unusual nature of your letter highlights OGE’s
responsibility to lead the executive branch ethics program with independence, free from political
pressure, Accordingly, OGE declines your request to suspend its ethics inquiry and reiterates its
expectatinn that agencies will fully comply with its directive by June 1, 2017. Public confidence
in the integnty of government decisionmaking demands no less.

By law, OGE is the “supervising ethics office” for the executive branch.® Under the
Ethics in Government Act of 1978 (EIGA), as amended, OGE has plenary authority to collect all
information and records that “the Director may determine to be necessary for the performance of
his duties,” as well as such reports “as the Director deems necessary,” except to the extent
prohibited by law.®

' See Attachment 13,

 Recenl news reports, which OGF has neither validated nor conclusively invalidated, raise questions as 10 whether
some appointees are participatisg in matters from which they may be required to recuse if they have nol received
waivers, See Eric Liplon, Ben Protess & Andrew Lehren, With Trump Appointees, a Raft af Potential Canflicts and
‘N Transparency,’ N.Y. TIMES, Apr. 15, 2017, https://g00.gl/nq2V 3Z; Ediloriel Board, Trump is Issuing Secret
Waivers ta his Own Ethics Rules. So Much far Dratning the Swemp, WASH, POST, May 6, 2017,

https://goo.gl/hde TXA.
* See Attachment 14.

* You sen copies of your letter to hundreds of General Counsels and Designaled Agency Ethics Dfficials.
*5U.8.C. app. § 109(18).
* 5 U.S.C. app. §§ 402(b)(10), 403(a)(2).

Y o A K
1201 NEW YORK AVE NW-SUTTE 500-WASHINGTDN DC+20005
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The Honorable John M. Mulvaney ) - IR |

Director
Page 2

Congress has firmly articulated the need for OGE to have access to needed information
and records, as the report of one House committee clearly states:

The Committee believes that it is not possible for OGE to ensure the
effective and efficient operation of the executive branch ethics
program as a whole without having up-to-date information on how
agency programs are structured and without having important
management data. This data would indicate, for example, the number
of individuals who have and haven’t filed SF-278s; the number and
type of corrective actions required of agency employees (divestitures,
waivers, disqualifications); and the number of employees alleged or
found to have violated employees’ standards of conduct or conflict of
interest laws, rules, and regulations.?

A Senate committee report similarly observes that, “[F]or purposes of performing his
responsibilities, [OGE’s Director] will require access to relevant files and records of agency '
ethics counselors and other agency materials, information, and docurentation necessary to”
monitor compliance with this statute and related conflict of interest laws and regulations. »S

Agency ethics officials are well aware of their legal obl1gat1on to produce information
and records subject to OGE’s directives.’ In fact, dozens of agencies have already complied with
OGE’s current directive well in advance of the June 1, 2017, deadline. In addition, your own
agency has a solid record of compliance with OGE’s information and records production
directives. OMB recently complied with a directive to produce an extensive array of information
and records that OGE needed for a thorough evaluation of OMB’s ethics program. " oMB
regularly responds to other OGE dlrectlves to produce information and records.'' Most recently,
OMB provided OGE with notlce 2 of your own efforts to comply with the ethics agreement that
you signed on January 10, 20 17.1

Additional examples of agency compliance with OGE directives to produce information
and records are abundant. Among other items, the most obvious examples include: notifications
filed by Inspectors General and agency ethics ofﬁc1als related to criminal referrals for
prosecution; 14 ¢riminal conflict of interest waivers;'> responses to executive branch-wide

7 See H.R. REP. NO. 100-1017, at 19-20 (1988) (emphasis added). I
® See S. REP. NO. 95-170, a1 150 (1977).

% See 5 U.S.C. app. §§ 402(b)(10), 403(a)(2); 5 C.F.R. §§ 2638.104(c)(3), 2638.202.

1 See Attachment 6.

Y See, e.g., Office of Mgmt. and Budget, Respornse ta Annual Agency Ethics Program Questionnaire jor CY 20135,
U.S. OFr. Gov'T ETHICS, https:/p0og.gl/VadncA (last visited May 22, 2017).

12 Attachment 10.

" Ethics Agreement of John M. Mulvaney (Jan. 10, 2017), https.//goo.gl/5vBZ W),

" See 5 C.F.R. § 2638.206; see also OGE Form 202, https://g00.gl/SAIA23.

13 See Exec. Order No. 12,731, § 301(d) (Oct. 17, 1990); 5 C.F.R. § 2640.303.
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The Hé"iiqi‘abie..John'-M; MUlvanéy |
Diirector ‘
Page 3

directives for information and records;'® responses to directives to produce information and
records in connection with multi-agency special issue reviews; ' responses to agency-specific
directives in connection with oversight of individual agency ethics programs;'® directives to
produce annually designations of separate agency components; ' responses to a standing
directive to produce delegations of authority to Designated Agenczy Ethics Officials;*® reports of
agencies’ acceptance of outside reimbursement for official travel, ! responses to requests for
information regarding conflict of interest prosecutions;** and responses to the annual Agency
Ethics Program Questionnaire. **

Just last year, the Govemment Accountability Office issued a report recommending that
the Director of OGE collect data from Designated Agency Ethics Officials and determine
whether executive branch agencies are experiencing challenges related to the reliability of data
on the executive branch’s use of special govemment t=:mployet=:s.24 GAQO’s report followed an
inquiry that it conducted at the request of Senate Judiciary Committee Chairman Charles E.
Grassley.?® Thereafter, OGE issued an executive branch-wide directive requiring production of
information through a “compulsnry survey” of 135 agencies, including OMB, and achieved a

10087, fesponse rate; 3 77

Compliance on the part of agencies with these OGE directives to produce information
and records is entirely commonplace;?” however, I am aware of the views of the White House’s
current Designated Agency Ethics Official. In a letter dated February 28, 2017, he asserted that
Presidential appointees serving in the White House Office are beyond the reach of basic ethics
requirements universally applicable to millions of executive branch employees.?® As I explained

1° See, e.g., OGE Program Advisory PA-15-01 (2015), https:/goo.gl/hcy9lz; Memo fram Dale Christopher, Assoc.
Dir., Pragram Servs, Div,, U.S. Office of Gov't Elhics, to Designaled Agency Ethics Officials, Notifying the United
States Office af Government Ethics of Filing Extensions, DO-10-011 (2010), hups:fuoo.el/AjiGmi.

"7 Past-Election Readiness Review, U.S. OFF. Gov'T ETHIcS, {Sept. 1, 2012), hittps://go0.al/qR419L..

'8 See Attachment 5.

"% See 5 C.F.R. § 2641.302(¢)(2)(ii).

% See Attachment 9.

' WHiTE HOUSE OFFICE, SEMIANNUAL REPORT OF PAYMENTS ACCEPTED FROM A NON-FEDERAL SOURCE (Sept. 30,
2010), hitps:// goo.ol/oMIIPA. _

T See Conflict of Interest Prosecutian Surveys Index (by Statute), U.S. OFF, GOV'T ETHICS, hitps://g00.2l/rMgtA8
{last visited May 22. 2017}; see alsa Attachment 12,

 Annual Agency Ethics Pragram Questianngire Responses (CY14), U.S. OFF, Gov'T ETHICS (Jul. 1, 2015),

htips: Hfgoo.gl/dQ VpHP,

# U.S. GOV'T ACCOUNTABILITY OFFInR, (GAG-16-548, FEDERAL WORKFORCE: OPPORTUNITIES EXIST TO IMPROVE
D+ 74 ON SPLRGTED GReUrS OF SPECIAL GOVERNMENT EMPLO YEES {2016), https:/goo.¢1/[cqADy.

** fee Press Release, Sen. Charles E. Grassley, Special Government Employee Report Released, Qutlines Problems
Managing Designation (Aug. 15, 2016), hitps://soo. pl/Ps15A4 (*Grassley asked the Govemment Aceountability
Office (GAO) to study the Special Government Employee designation to see whether it works as intended to serve
taxpayers.”).

* U.S. OFFICE OF Gov'T ETHICS, SPECIAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES NOT SERVING ON FEDERAL BOARDS (201 7,
hitps://uoo. el/MNepd3V, d

* See, e.g., Attachments 3, 5-6, 8-12.

™ See Letter from Stefan C. Passantino, Designated Ageney Ethics Official, White House Office, to Walter M.
Shaub, Jr., Directar, U.5. Office of Gov't Ethics (Feb. 28, 2017), https:#/go0.8l/JozVpS. Note, however, that

Mr. Passantino’s letter also stands as an example of the White House Office’s compliance with exercises of OGE's
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The Honorable John M. Mulvaney
Director
Page 4

in my response, the theory underlying his position has not been applied i in the context of -
government ethics.”” Contrary to the Designated Agency Ethics.Officiai"s 4sséition, the White
House Ofﬁce has routinely complied with OGE’s directives to produce information and

records.”® For your edification, I have enclosed a sampling of materials that illustrate the exercise
of OGE’s authority to collect information and records from the White House Office during every
Presidential administration since the enactment of the Ethics in Government Act in 1978,
including the Obama, Bush, Clinton, Bush, Reagan, and Carter Administrations.*’ As you will
observe when you review these materials, the compliance of the White House Office has not
previously been in doubt.*?

Irrespective of the views expressed by the White House’s Designated Agency Ethics
Official, OGE’s authority is sufficiently clear that consultation with OLC is unnecessary.
Nevertheless, you may find it helpful to know that OLC recently approved OGE’s issuance of a
regulation that establishes the following mandate:**

Acting directly or through other officials, the DAEQ is responsible for
taking actions authorized or required under this subchapter, including
the following: . . . Promptly and timely furnishing the Office of
Govemment Ethics with all documents and information requested or
required under subpart B of this part. . ..

statutory authority 1o compel the production of information and records because, notwitkstasiliig his stated
objection, the letter includes the information OGE required him to produce.
¥ The underlying theory is lhat the White House Office is nol an “executive agency” for certain limited purpgses
under 5 U.S.C. § 105, which is referenced in OGE’s organic statute. For example, the White House has been found
not 1o be an “executive agency™ for purposes of a certain employmenl discrimination law. See Haddon v. Walters,
43 F.3d 1488 (D.C. Cir. 1995) {per curiam). tn contrast, the While House has been found to be an “executive
agency” for purposes of 18 U.S.C. § 603. Applicatian of 18 U.5.C. § 603 ta Caniributians io the President’s Re-
Election Committee, 27 Op. O.L.C. 118, 119 (2003) (Office of Legal Counsel opinion finding that, under lhe
slatutory scheme of the Halch Act Reform Amendments, the While House Office should be treated as an “executive
agency™ under tille 5, notwithstanding Haddon). In addition, the White House has routinely relied on a certain
statutory autharity available only to an “executive agency” that autherizes acceptance of outside reimbursements for
official travel. See 31 U.S.C. § 1353{c)(1} {restricting authority to accept such reimbursements only to an “executive
agency"” as defined under 5 U.S.C. § 105); see olso WHITE HOUSE OFFICE, SEMIANNUAL REPORT OF PAYMENTS
ACCEPTED FROM A NON-FEDERAL SOURCE {Sept. 30, 2016), htips:/goo.gVBTUpBw. Thus, the White Housc is an
“executive agency” for some purposes and arguably not for others. However, its status as an “execulive agency” for
purposes of lhe Ethics in Government Act is not in doubt. To the contrary, the attached materials include examples
of the successful exercise of OGE's authomy to require the White House Office to produce information and records
over the years since enaciment of the Ethics in Government Act. See Attachment 8; see aiso Office of Government
Ethics Jurisdiction Over the Smithsonian Institution, 32 Op. 0.L.C. 56, 63-64 (2008) (OLC opinion finding
hislorical practice relevant to its analysis of the scope of OGE's authority).
' As part of the current White House’s unusual assertions with regard to ethics compliance, I note thata White
Housc official contacled a staff-level OGE employee a few hours before | received your letter in order to challenge
an OGE directive to produce information and records that OGE issues every year. In conneclion with this challenge,
the caller demanded that the employee certify that his statement thal the Bush Adminislration had complied with the
directive was a “true and correct statement.” The White House caller also asked several questiors abept the
collection of information from the National Security Council, See Attachmeii i
3! See Attachment 8.
2 See id.
3 See Attachment 7.
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The Honorable John M. Mulvaney
Director
Page 5

The agency head is responsible for, and will exercise personal
leadership in, establishing and maintaining an effective agency ethics
program and fostering an ethical culture in the agency. The

agency head is also responsible for: . . . Requiring agency officials to
provide the DAEO with the information, support, and cooperation
necessary for the accomplishment of the DAEO's responsibilities . . . .

Consistent with sections 402 and 403 of the Act, each agency must

furnish to the Director all information and records in its possession

which the Director deems necessary to the performance of the

Director's duties, except to the extent prohibited by law. All such

information and rccords must be provided to the Office of Government

Ethics in a complete and timely manner.**
OLC approved the promul gation of this regulation pursuant to a statutory re%mremcnt that OGE
coordinate with the Department of Justice before issuing certain regulations.” In addition to this
statutorily required consultation with OLC, OGE consulted with OMB and a broad range of
other stakeholders through the ordinary regulatory process.*®

The recent issuance of this regulation did not significantly change the regulatory
framework for requiring the submission of information and records in the executive branch to
OGE. The above-quoted language is similar to the language of an earlier regulation that OGE
issued 27 years ago in consultation with the Department of Justice.’” A former OGE Director,
who was appointed by President Bush and later reappointed by President Clinton, emphasized
that compliance with the regulation has never been optional:

The first point to remember is that every executive agency has a
statutory obligation to furnish OGE with “all information and records
in its possession which the Director may determine to be necessary for
the performance of his duties.” 5 U.S.C. app. § 403(a). This statutory
obligation is independent of, and serves many purposes in addition to,

34 Executive Branch Eihics Pregram Amendments, 81 Fed. Reg. 76,271, 76,274, 76,276-77 (Nov. 2, 2016) (codified
at 5 C.F.R. §§ 2638.104, 2638.107, 2638. 202).
¥ 5 U.8.C. app. § 402(b)(1) ..

¥ Se¢ Exetutive Branch Ethics Program Amendments, 81 Fed. Reg. at 76,271 (“These amendments, which are
decscribed in the preamble to the proposed rute, draw upon the collective experience of agency ethics officials across
the execulive branich and OGE as the supervising ethics office. They reflect extensive input from the executive
branch ethics community and the inspectar general community, as well as OGE’s consultation with the Department
of Justice (DOI) and the Office of Personnel Management pursuant to 5 U.S.C. app. 402(b)(1). In short, they present
a comprehensive picture of the executive branch ethics program, its respansibilities and its procedures, as reflected
through nearly 40 years of interpreting and implementing the Ethics in Government Act of 1978, as amended (the
Act) as well as other applicable statutes, regulations, Execulive orders, and autharities.").

7 Implementatian of the Office of Government Elhics Reauthorization Act of 1988, 55 Fed. Reg. 1665 (1990);
Corrective Action and Repetting Requiremenis Relating to Executive Agency Ethics Programs: Imple mentation of
the Office of Gevernment Ethics Reauthorization Act of 1988, 55 Fed. Reg. 21,845 (1990); see also 5 U.S.C. app.

§ 402(b)(1).
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The Honorable John M. Mulvaney
Director
Page 6

the scheme for agency review and OGE certification of certain
financial disclosure statements. See 5 U.S.C. app. § 402 (listing broad
range of statutory authorities and functions).... Furthermore, as {the
Designated Agency Ethics Official (DAEQ)] acknowledges, OGE’s
implementing regulations provide that the DAEQ *shall ensure” that
information requested by OGE *is provided in a complete and timely
manner.” 5 C.F.R. § 2638.203(a)(14).

By statute, OGE is charged with providing “overall direction of
executive branch policies related to preventing conflicts of interest.”
5 U.S.C. app. § 402(a). Among other things, OGE is given specific
statutory authority to promulgate rules, interpret those rules, and
monitor compliance with financial disclosure requirements. 5 U.S.C.

app. § 402(b).

Unless and until OGE’s interpretation had been overruled by a judicial
opinion or otherwise modified by OGE through the usual process of
executive branch deliberations, the DAEO had no ground to hold out a
contrary interpretation as a lawful option for the filer. Should any
future disagreements arise between the DAEQ and OGE as to lega!.
issues within OGE’s primary jurisdiction, we expeci tnat the DAEO
will be careful not to make any statements that might reasonably be
construed by [agency] employees as giving them the option to
disregard the interpretation of OGE in favor of a contrary
interpretation rendered by the DAEQ.

The Director’s opinion accurately reflects the common understanding in the executive branch
that compliance is mandatory.*

In light of OGE’s clear authority and the long history of agencies’ compliance, your letter, =

requesting a stay of OGE’s pending directive for production of information and records copied to
hundreds of other executive branch officials is highly unusual. For OGE to fulfill its mission of

* OGE Informal Advisory Opinion 00 x 2 a1 14 (2000).

¥ See Reouthorizotion of the Office of Government Ethics: Heoring Before the Subcomm. on the Fed. Workforce
ond Agency Org. of the H. Comm. on Gov't Reform, 1091h Cong. 109-211, a1 19 (2006) (staiemeni of Marilyn
Glynn, Acting Director, Office of Government Ethics), hups://poo.gl/22vffk (“We do have currently so-called
corective action authority that allows us to actually hold & hearing if an agency or an individual at an agency refuses
to comply on an ongoing basis with some direction in effect that we have given them, and we have never had to use

it. I think we have a little bit of the power of the bully pulpit. We can call very high level folks at the agency, all the .

way up to & Secretary's office or an Administrator's office, and say, so and so on your staff is doing thus apd such
and it needs to stop. And it stops immediately. We do not find pughback from ageycies. So-1-axni not'sure that there is
a nced to particularly strengthen our role.”).
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preventing conflicts of interest and monitoring compliance with the ethics laws by agencies and
officials, the Director must be able to act independently and free from political pressure.
Congress created OGE as an institutional check to monitor the ethics program and to prevent
conflicts of interest in the executive branch, OGE can effectively perform this role only if it can
act objectively and without fear of reprisal.*°

In this context, it bears emphasizing that OGE has the authority to institute corrective
action proceedings against agencies that fail to comply, or against individuals who 1mproper1y
prevent agency ethics officials from complying, with the Ethics in Government Act.! Likewise
the Inspectors General and the U.S. Office of Special Counsel have authority to investigate
allegations of retaliation against ethics ‘officials for complying with the legal requirement to
provide OGE with the information and records subject to this directive.*?

.- OGE isexercising its authority and independence appropriately. OGE’s April 28, 2017,
directive is supported by ample legal authority and compliant with applicable procedures.
Consistent with the applicable legal standard, the directive includes a determination of
necessity.*> Although not required to do so, OGE has also limited the scope of the directive to
information and records that lie at the heart of the executive branch ethics program.* OGE has
also afforded executive branch officials a full month to produce information and records that are
routinely maintained and readily accessible by any well-run agency ethics program.

_ This directive supports a key aspect of OGE’s mission, which is to ensure public
confidence in the integrity of executive branch-wide decisionmaking. The vital national interest
in disclosure of such information and records was most eloquently expressed in a letter that
Chairman of the Senate Committee on the Judiciary Charles E. Grassley sent to OGE:

“ See S. REP, NO. 98-59 at 20 (1983) (“A major issue discussed at the Oversight Subcommittee’s hearing was the
independence of the OGE. In many instances, the Office must rule on sensilive issues invalving palitical appaintees
and other high-ranking officials. For the OGE 10 perform its role of preventing conflicts of interest and manitoring
compliance with the ethics laws by agencies aind officials, it is crucial hat the Director act independently and free
from political pressure. . . . The Congress crealed the OGE as an institutional check 12 monitor the ethics program
and to prevent conflicts of interesl in the Exscutive Branch. This institutional check is effective anly when the
Office can ncs objeciively and without fear of reprisal.”); see also Attachment 4 (Senate Hameland Security and
Govemment Affairs Committee Questionnaire for Walter M. Shaub, Jr., Question 26: “Some believe that the
Director af OGE must be insulated from political pressure, to ensure the Director is not forced ta campramise an
necessary actian or encouraged to deviate from the narmal application of ethical requirements with raspect ta a
particular individual. Do yau agree lhat the Direetor of OGE must act independently and free from palitical
pressure? If so, how would you, if confirmed, maintain this independence and freedom from pressure?™.
*'5 U.S.C. app. § 402(b)(9), (); 5 C.F.R. pt. 2638, subpts. D, E.

% See 5 U.S.C. app. §§ 2(1), 4(2)(1) (Inspector General Actof 1978, as amended); see.also 5 U.§.C.
§§ 2302(6)(9)(D). (b)(12).

W See OGE Program Advisary PA-17-02 at 1 (2017); see aiso 5 U.S.C. app. §§ 402(b)(10), 403; 5 CF.R.
§§ 2638.104(c)(3), 2638.202.

In your letter, yau refer to what you characterize as the “uniqueness™ of this directive ta produce informatian and
records, but there is nothing unique about OGE collecting records central to the program it oversees. As the enclosed
samples illustrate, OGE's staff has engaged in either the collection or review of ageney ethics program records on
cach working day since OGE’s establishment in 1978. See, eg., Attachments 3, 5-6, 8-12.
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The work of the Government is the work of the people and it should be
public and available for all to see. It has been said that sunlight is the
best disinfectant and that opening up the business of the Government
will ensure that the public trust is not lost. As a senior member of the
United States Senate, I have consistently worked to eniire that tie * -
business of the Govemment is done in as open and transparent manner
as possible.

I am concerned that Section 3 could be used to gut the ethical heart of
the [Executive] Order. Each day, new nominees to key Government
positions are reported. Many of these nominees have been nominated
despite the fact that they have previously served as lobbyists orin a
manner that would preclude their participation under the Order absent
a Section 3 waiver.

[T]he Ethics in Governrnent Act provides the Director of OGE a
number of authorities to bring sunlight upon Section 3 waivers issued
by DAEOs. Specifically, the Act explicitly provides the Director of
OGE the authority to, arnong other things, “interpret rules and
regulations issued by the President or the Director governing conflict
of interest and ethical problems and the filing of financial statements.” . ---
The Act also provides the Director of OGE the authority to require
“such reports from executive agencies as the Director deems
necessary.” Further, the Act authorizes the Director to prescribe
regulations that require each executive agency to submit to OGE a
report containing “any other information that the Director may require
in order to carry out the responsibilities of the Director under this
title.” Finally, the Act is clear that when the Director makes a request
to an executive agency, the agency shall furnish “all information and
records in its possession which the Director may determine to be
necessary for the performance of his duties.”

Based upon these existing statutory authorities you have the authority
to require each DAEO to provide OGE with an accounting of all
waivers and recusals issued.

The American people deserve a full accounting of all waivers and
recusals to better understand who is running the government and
whether the Administration is adhering to its promise to be open,
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transparent, and accountable. I urge you to take immediate action to
make any waivers and recusals public . . . %

Following its receipt of Chairman Grassley’s letter and the development of the necessary
technological means, OGE began posting ethics pledge waivers on its official website.*
However, the current Administration has not been complying with this established practice.

In closing, I want to assure you that a request from the Director of the Office of
Management and Budget is not something that I decline lightly. For the foregoing reasons,
however, OGE is not granting your request to stay the pending directive to produce information

and records. Please take all necessary steps to ensure that OMB’s response is submitted by the
June 1, 2647 déadline. ¥

Sincerely,

Walter M. Shaub, Jr.
Director

Attachments (15)

% See Attachment 2.

%S Executive Branch Agency Ethics Pledge Waivers, U.S. OFF, GOV'T ETHICS, https://go0.glY wl6wQ (last visiled
May 22, 20§7),

“7 See Attachment 15.

Vel nderys
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cc. Designated Agency Ethics Officials

General Counsels
Inspectors General

The Honorable Carolyn N. Lerer
U.S. Office of Special Counsel
1730 M Street, NW, Suite 218
Washington, DC 20036-4505

The Honorable Jason E. Chaffetz

Chairman

Committtee on Oversight and
Govemment Reform

United States House of Representatives

2157 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Elyah E. Cummings

Ranking Member

Committee on Oversight and
Government Reform

United States House of Representatives

2471 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Bob Goodlatte
Chairman

Committee on Judiciary

United States House of Representatives
2309 Raybum House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable John Conyers

Ranking Member

Committee on Judiciary

United States House of Representatives
2426 Raybum House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Ronald H. Johnson

Chairman

Committee on Homeland Security and
Governmental Affairs

United States Senate

340 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC, 20510 _

The Hoiidfable Claire C. McCaskill

Ranking Member

Committee on Homeland Security and
Governmental Affairs

United States Senate

340 Dirksen Senate Office Building

Washington, DC, 20510

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley
Chairman _

Committee on the Judiciary

United States Senate

224 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510-6050

The Honorable Dianne G. B. Feinstein
Ranking Member .
Committee on the Judiciary

United States Senate

224 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 26510-6050
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